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Certied Accountants (UK)
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Finance Director
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Controller

CFO/CO0O

Financial Controller

Finance Manager
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Senior Audit

usEn foudes Wazwalne)
MR (NRIBU)

Ansell Shared Services
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MESSAGE FROM CHAIRMAN

To the Shareholders of Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Last year, Thai economy and tire production industry were affected by various incidents e.g. Tsunami
in Japan, global economic recession from the public debt of the United States of America and European
countries, the severe flood in Thailand. These unexpected situations have negative affect to the operation
of the Company, especially the result from the severe flood that the Company has temporarily ceased
production in October to December 2011. However the Management of the Company has initfiated the necessitous
measures to relieve the situation and effect arisen fo our associates and customers. The Company was able o

face such incidents.

For the year 2012, the Company believes that the Country’s economy and automobile industry environment
will be recovered and growing up. The Company will focus on the sfrongly business growth with the competent
personnel, new machine and high value product focusing directly on the need of market and the plan to
expand the distribution channel, Goodyear Autocare, covering the targeted market plus the increase of marketing

activities to be closely accessed by customers.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank all Shareholders, dealers and associates for your kindly

support and trust in Goodyear brand and Company as always.

4 4
Dr. Dhiraphorn  Srifuengfung

Chairman




REPORT OF AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee’s roles and responsibilities are to perform duties and functions stafed in the Best Practice
Guidelines for the Audit Committee issued by the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET), provisions of the Public
Companies Limited Act of 1992 (B.E. 2535) and the Securities and Exchange Act of 1992 (B.E. 2535). To comply
with the principles and the best practices set out the SET" guidelines as to the Audit Committee, the Audif
Committee reviews financial statements of Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited. The Audit Committee

are pleased to report to the Board and shareholders as follows:

1. All members of Audit Committee were independent directors; namely:
(@) Mr. Athaporn Khaimarn Chairman of Audit Committee
() Mr. Kenneth Lee White Member of Audit Committee

(¢) Mr. Yeap Swee Chuan Member of Audit Committee

2. The Audit Committee has a full power access to inspect and has received cooperation from the management
of the Company. It was able to invite directors or executive officers to attend its meetings as appropriate.
Mr. Mark Chandran Ravunni, Finance Director and Mr. Brad S. Lakhia, ASEAN Finance Director regularly aftended
the meetings fogether with the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited, where during 2011

the Audit Committee held 4 meetings.

3. The Audit Committee has received the cooperafion from others as requested that enabled it to perform its

functions properly.

4. The Audit Committee has reviewed with the findings of the infernal and external auditors and reviewed the
Company’s internal confrol system, the infernal auditor’s reports and internal confrol assessments, all of which

were duly reported to the Board.

5. All issues and questions raised by the Audit Committee members in its deliberations were resolved by the

management and the Board to the Audit Committee’s satisfaction.

Based on the foregoing, Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited’s operation in Fiscal Year 2011 was found
by the Audit Committee to have complied with the Committee’s guidelines and as required by applicable laws
and regulations of Thailand.

Respectfully submitted,

Athaporn Khaimarn

Chairman of the Audit Committee




COMPARISON OF THREE YEARS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

ltem Year 2011 Year 2010 Year 2009
Cash and cash equivalent 935,584 758,718 536,751
Short term investment 65,000 65,000 65,000
Trade account receivables, net 347,951 823,854 696,239
Inventories, net 457,038 547317 345.644
Value Added Tax refundable 62,592 48,585 52,632
Other current assets 65.644 38,278 35.806
Long ferm loan to a related company 315,505 300,063 332,207
Spare parts - - 136,285
Property, plant and equipment, net 1,895,365 1,629,501 1,420,171
Other assets 4,398 4,010 6.577
Total assets 4,149,077 4,115,326 3.627.312
Trade account payable 671,715 808,678 498,206
Withholding tax payment 8.121 14,460 23,029
Advance from an insurer 318,059 - -
Accrued expenses 204,932 101,505 79,827
Income tax payable - - 62,276
Other current liabilities 22,508 7.184 7.031
Reserved for provident fund and retirement benefits 85,477 77 422 74,717
Total liabilities 1,310.812 1,009.249 745,086
Share capital - authorized, issued and fully paid up 74,000 74,000 74,000
Premium on share capital 92,000 92,000 92,000
Retained earnings-appropriated -legal reserve 7.400 7.400 7.400

-Unappropriated 2,664,865 2,932,677 2,708.826
Total Shareholders” s equity 2,838,265 3,106,077 2,882,226
Sales 4,085,563 4,182,929 3,382,312
Cost of Sale (3.495,470) (3.815.356) (3.112,936)
Selling and administrative expenses (359.691) (374.508) (353.670)
Other operating expense (340,150) - (326,582)
Other income 22,881 476,777 53,693
Income tax (32,954) (134.991) (62,769)
Loss for the year (119.812) 334,851 233212
Basic earnings per share (16.19) 45.25 31.52
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SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL RATIOS

LIQUIDITY RATIO

Item

Year 2011

Year 2010

Year 2009

Liquidity ratio

1.84

2.29

2.58

Quick ratio

1.01

1.64

1.78

Account payable furnover

7.61

5.87

5.37

Average collection period

47.34

61.38

66.98

Inventory turnover

8.19

10.27

8.50

Inventory days

35.04

42.35

Collection days

61.66

61.98

Cash Cycle

34.76

36.44

PROFITABILITY RATIO

ltfem

Year 2011

Year 2010

Year 2009

Gross margin ratio

14.44

8.8

8.0

percent

Net profit (loss) ratio

29

8.0

6.9

percent

Return on asset ratfio

29

8.6

6.2

percent

Return to fixed assets ratio

0.3

percent

Total asset turnover

fime

FINANCIAL POLICY RATIO

ltem

Year 2011

Year 2010

Year 2009

Debts to Shareholders

0.46

0.32

0.26

fime

Dividend (loss)

(123.5)

33.1

79.3

percent

EXPLANATIONS AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL STATUS AND

OPERATION AND SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL RATIOS

(1) Liquidity

This liquidity of the Company decreased since the Company had invested in new machines fo increase the
efficiency in production. The average collection period was lessen from 61.38 days in 2010 to 47.34 days in
2011 resulting from the decrease of account receivables in the 4th Quarter because the Company and the
customers suffered from the flood. The average product selling period increased from 35.04 days in 2010 to
43.98 days in 2011 because of the flood crisis. In addition, with an ability to manage its working capital more
efficiently, this had improved an overall cash cycle of the Company from 34.76 days in 2010 tfo 15.09 days

in 2011,




(2) Profitability Ratio

A gross margin ratio increased from 8.8 per cent in 2010 fo 14.4 per cent in 2011 because the Company has
improved the production processes to increase the efficiency in production. The prices of raw materials in the
global market increased materially. In addition, the Company adopted new TAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment.
The Company has performed a review of the useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of property,
plant and equipment to be more appropriate with the current use of assets. The Company, therefore, has
changed the depreciation method of machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures and motor vehicles acquired
from 1993 onwards from the sum-of-the-year-digits method to be the straight-ine method. The Company changed

the estimated residual values and useful life and depreciation method by using prospective adjustments.
(3] Efficiency in operation
Retun on Asset (ROA) rafio and a Return to Fixed Asset (ROFA) rafio decreased following to an decrease

of production due to flood crisis in the 4th Quarter.

(4) Financial Policy

Our debt to equity ratfio increased from 0.32 time in 2010 to 046 time in 2011 because of the extension of
payment terms.

(5) Conclusion

Sales decreased 2.3 per cent compared fo the previous year as a result of Tsunami in Japan in the 1st Quarter

and flood in Thailand in the 4th Quarter.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTION

Related parties is the individual or enterprises that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, control,
or are confrolled by, or are under common control with, the Company, including holding companies, subsidiaries
and fellow subsidiaries are related parties of the Company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly,
an interest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the enterprise, key
management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the family of
these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also consfitute related parties. In considering
each possible related party relationship, aftentfion is directed to the substance of the relafionship, and not merely

the legal form.

The Company is confroled by The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company (registered and located in the USA), which
owns 66.79% of the Company’s issued shares. The remaining 33.21% of the shares are widely held by individuals

and exterprises.




Pricing policies for related parties’ transactions comprise of:

Pricing policies

Sales and purchases Costs plus margin

Royalty fee Percentage of revenues from sales of products

manufactured in Thailand
Production service fee As actual incurred

Management fee As actual incurred

The following tfransactions were carried out with related parties:

i) Sales of goods

Sales of finished goods:

Parent company 333,738,937

Related parties - same common control 2,000,023.530

248,711,738

1.909,109,737

2,333.762.467

2.157.821.475

i) Purchases of goods and services

Purchases of raw materials and finished goods:
Parent company 90,545,822

Related parties - same common control 492,164,140

111,695,114

408,274,124

582.709.962

519.969.238

Purchases of machinery and spare parts:
Parent company 147 471,662

Related parties - same common control 181,617,511

44,536,650

297,518,602

329,089,173

342,055,252

Royalty fee:

Parent company 159,329,227

185.349.969

Production fechnique service fee:

Parent company 2,389,381

7.561,703

Management fee:

Related parties - same common control 128,855,896

137.727 872




i) Outstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods/services

Trade accounts receivables - related parties:
Parent company 5,506,605 90,457,652

Related parties - same common conftrol 133,402,680 465,077,627

138,909,285 555,535,279

Amounts due from related parties:
Parent company 1,370,466 2,944,140

Related parties - same common control 44,812,728 48,237 971

46,183,194 51,182,111

Trade accounts payables - related parties:

Parent company 17,955,923 5,600,296

Related parties - same common control 206,597,496 44,281,157

224,553,419 49,881,453

Amounts due to related parties:
Parent company 108,252,141 41,856,818

Related parties - same common control 52,751,659 81,006,731

161,003,800 122,863,549

iv) Directors’ and management’s remuneration 2011 2010

Baht Baht

Directors’ and management’s remuneration 24,204,396 29,205,627

Directors” and management’s remuneration represents salaries, meeting fees and other benefits.

v) Loan to a related party 2011
Baht

Loan to a related party:
Current portion 315,505,000 -

Long-term portion - 300,063,000

315,505,000 300,063,000

As at 31 December 2011, loan to a related party represents a loan of US Dollar 10 milion due prior to 30
September 2012, bearing interest at the rate of 2.6% per annum or LIBOR plus 1% per annum, whichever is
higher, and is guaranteed by the parent company.

The Company uses forward contract to hedge its exposure fo foreign curency risk of the US Dollar loan. The
forward exchange rate was Baht 31.37 per 1 US Dollar which the contract will mature on 28 September 2012.
As at 31 December 2011, the net fair value of the forward contract is unfavorable of Baht 7.9 milion and is
presented under other current liabilities.

The related interest income of the loan was Baht 8.0 million (2010: Baht 8.1 million).




SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE AND MANAGEMENT

Major Shareholders

Major Shareholders as of the recent book closing date 5 April 2011

Rank Major Shareholders Number of Shares % Share

The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company 4,942,418 66.79

BNP Paribas Securities Services, London Branch 431,900 5.84

Sri Keree Enterprises Company Limited 209.864 2.84

Sri Pheenong Company  Limited 208,240 2.81

Boonsong Company Limited 141,900 1.92

Mr. Boonsong Srifuengfung 101,918 1.38

Aberdeen Growth Fund 87,100 1.18

Thai NVDR Company Limited 73,702

Techaphaiboon Company Limited 51.480

Mrs. Darawan Salak 32,200

Ms. Parida Manomaipiboon 32,200

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY

The Company has four committees; namely, Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee and the Executive Directors:

(A) The Board of Directors

Composition of the Board of Directors:

. Boonsong Srifuengfung Honorary Chairman, not Member of the Board

. Dhiraporn  Srifuengfung Chairman/member of the Nomination and Corporate Governance Commifttee

. Athaporn Khaimarn Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee

. Kenneth Lee White Independent Director & member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
and the Corporate Governance Committee

. Yeap Swee Chuan Independent Director & member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
and Corporate Governance Committee and Corporate Governance Committee

. Richard John Fleming Executive Director (upto December 14, 2011)

. Suttipong Wannawanit Managing Director

. Phiphat Vorapipa Executive Director & Member of the Nomination and Corporate Governance

Committee




. Ng Ching Yong Director (upto December 14, 2011)
. Quek Khai Whatt Director
. Brad S. Lakhia Director (as from December 14, 2011)

. Mark Chandran Ravunni Executive Director (as from December 14, 2011)

Remark:

1. Mr. Richard John Fleming resigned from his directorship on December 14, 2011. Mr. Brad S. Lakhia has been
appointed as Director in lieu of Mr. Richard John Fleming on December 14, 2011.

2. Mr. Ng Ching Yong resigned from his directorship on December 14, 2011. Mr. Mark Chandran Ravunni has been
appointed as Director in lieu of Mr. Ng Ching Yong on December 14, 2011.

At the Board meeting, no less than a mdjority of directors shall be present to constitute a quorum. When Chaimnan
of the Board is absent from any meeting or unable to act, directors present shall elect one among themselves
as Chairman of the meeting. Decisions of the Board shall be made by a simple majority vote. Each director
shall have one votfe. In case any director has an inferest in any resolution fo be made, he is not allowed to
vote on such resolufion. Presiding Chairman shall have a casting vote.

The Company Secrefary is Mr. Suwat Tirawatnangkoon, who primarily performs dufies as described by the Securities

and Exchange Act of 2008.

(B) The Audit Committee

The Board of Directors of the Company appoints the Audit Committee whose responsibiliies are to investigate
the audit of financial statements and review the Company’s internal control system in an effective manner, etc.
Members of the Audit Committee must possess qualifications as required by regulations of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Composition of the Audit Committee:

. Athaporn Khaimarn Chairman of Audit Committee
. Kenneth Lee White Member of Audit Committee
. Yeap Swee Chuan Member of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee’s term is three years. A one-month advance nofice with the reason is required for resignation.

A new appointed member by the Board of Directors to replace the resigning member will be in the office for

a remaining ferm of the resigning member only.

(C) The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

Composition of the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee:

. Dhiraphorn  Srifuengfung Chairman of the Board
. Kenneth Lee White Independent Director/Member of Audit Committee
. Yeap Swee Chuan Independent Director/Member of Audit Committee

. Phiphat Vorapipat Executive Director




The ferm of the Nomination and Corporate Govemance Commiffee is three years. A one-month advance nofice
with the reason is required for resignation. A new member appointed by the Board of Directors to replace the

resigning member will remain in the office for a remaining term of the resigning member only.

(D) Executive Directors

Executive Directors are to operate and manage the Company to achieve its goadls set each year. The Company
appoints Managing Director and other Directors as its Executfive Director. In 2011, Executfive Directors were:
1. Mr. Richard John Fleming Managing Director Goodyear ASEAN (upto December 14, 2011)
2. Mr. Suttipong Wannawanit Managing Director
3. Mr. Phiphat Vorapipat Director Product Supply ASEAN/ Manager of Aviation Supply Chain APAC
4. Mr. Mark Chandran Ravunni  Finance Director
Remark:
1. Mr. Richard John Fleming resigned from his directorship on December 14, 2011. Mr. Brad S. Lakhiahas been
appointed as Director in lieu of Mr. Richard John Fleming on December 14, 2011.
2. Mr. Ng Ching Yong resigned from his directorship on December 14, 2011. Mr. Mark Chandran Ravunni has been

appointed as Director in lieu of Mr. Ng Ching Yong on December 14, 2011.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(1) Selection of Directors

The Company selects directors by a means of nomination following the consideration and approval of the
Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee and the Board of Directors. Shareholders will then consider
and approve appointing the directors. Minority shareholders have their rights to consider and vote to appoint
directors at the Shareholders’ Meeting. Currently, there are nine members of the Board of Directors, comprising
knowledgeable and experienced executives in related fields of businesses, including representatives of shareholders.

The numbers of the independent directors shall equal to or not less than one-third of the Board of Directors.

A selection and appointment of board members by shareholders is subject to the following criteria:
1. Each shareholder shall have one vote per share.
2. Each shareholder may use his entire vofe to elect one or more directors as deemed appropriate by the
shareholders’ meetings. However, in each voting shareholder shall vote with votes according to number of shares
held and shall not divide his votes in any proportion for any particular director.
3. The candidates shall be ranked in order descending from the highest number of votes received to the lowest,

and shall be appointed as directors in that order.

(2) Selecting Senior Management

The executive section will recruit the senior management upon vacancy and according to the criteria and

regulations of the Company.




(3) Remuneration of Directors and Executive Directors

In 2011, the director's fee for Chairman was 450,000 Baht and for other Board members living in Thailond and
not employed by the Company, the fee was 300,000 Baht. For the Audit Committee’s remunerations, the Company
paid an addifional fee of 300,000 Baht to its Chairman and 250,000 Baht to its members. As for the Nomination
and Corporate Governance Committee’s fee, the Company paid an additional Baht 50,000 its member. These

fees had been approved by the 43rd Annual General Meeting dated April 28, 2011.

Management’s remunerations of 2011 and 2010 are as follows:.

2011 (THB) 2010 (THB)

Directors and Management
24,204,396 29,205,627

Director’'s and management’ remuneratfion represents salaries, meeting fees and other benefits.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company believes the intemal controls are sufficient to protect its assets. The Company has not found the
risk incurring from misuse of the assets in an ilegal manner or without authority by the executives no any material
defects in the respect to ifs intfernal control. The Company has internal control procedures at both the management
and operation levels. Therefore, the Company has clearly defined duties and power in writfing concerning an
operation of our management and the functioning of our operation. The Board of Directors is responsible for
preparing financial statements. The financial statements are prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) of Thailond. The Company adheres to the accountfing policies applicable to if.
The Company prepares ifs financial statements with care and also discloses required sufficient information in the
Notes of Financial Statements. The Company has designed and implemented effective internal controls to ensure
that its books and accounts are materially correct and sufficient to maintain its assefs as well as to foresee any
weakness to prevent fraud and malpractice. For the above reasons, the Board of Directors has appointed the
Audit Committee who are independent directors tfo review and monitor quality of our financial statements and
infernal control and to provide the Audit Committee a report. The Board members considered that the internal
control of the Company have satisfactorily met its criteric and has been designed to ensure the reliability of its
financial statements as ended of December 31, 2011. The Company readlizes that its information of financial and
non-financial statements would effect to a decision making by an investor or a inferested person. For this reason,
our Management has aftempted to disclose sufficient, reliable and complete information in a fimely fashion for
investors to make prudent decisions. Due to a light volume of frading activity of the Company’s shares, we do
not have a separate Investor Relations Department. Instead, the Company has assigned Finance Director as a
point of contact for shareholders and relevant authorities. Investors may call 0-2909-8080 or visit our website at

http://www.goodyear.co.th.




Opinion of the Board of Directors regarding the Internal Control

The Board of Directors considers the cument infemal confrols of the Company are sufficient and proper. The Company
sets out a proper business goals for effective management of the enterprise and measureable. Those operation
goals are practical and regularly monitored. The Company has proper organization structure for efficiency on
business administrations. Conflicts of interest between the Company and employees have been defined and it
is fully complied. To boost up the quality of the internal control system, the Company has appointed an Internal
Auditor. In addition, the Company has p ut in place robust information tfechnology solufions (SAP) to improve the

effectiveness and efficiency level of our internal conftrols.

CORPORATE GOOD GOVERNANCE

Goodyear is subject to the laws of Thailaond, in particular, the Public Company Act of 1992 (BE. 2535) and the
Securities and Exchange Act of 1992 (B.E. 2535). In addition, a framework of corporate governance has been
developed and implemented at the Company. As such, the applicable laws and corporate good governance
have been implemented within Goodyear’s organization structure and business operation. As a US subsidiary
company, Goodyear must also comply with the Sarbanes Oxley Act (SOX) in respect to financial reporting controls

and the highest ethical standards.

SUPERVISION STRUCTURE OF THE COMPANY

We are supervised by meetings of Shareholders, Board of Directors, the Audit Committee, the Nomination and

Corporate Governance Committee and the Executfive Directors.

(1) Meetings of Shareholders

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) of shareholders are the highest
level to control our business operation. Shareholders are entitled to express their comments or give advice on any
administrative matters of the Company. The Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders is regularly held each
year whereas an extraordinary general meeting may be held from time to fime based upon the Company's
business needs.

During 2011, the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders was held on April 28, 2011. The Company
sent a nofice to attend the meeting as well as relevant information regarding the AGM to shareholders seven
days in advance. The Board of Directors has put their opinion to each agenda. The Company and its Board
of Directors redlized the importance of these meetings all directors then made every aftempt to aftend in person.
Furthermore, the Company has the policy to facilitate the procedures of holding the shareholding meetings and
equally treat every shareholder.

Before the beginning of the meeting. al relevant rules should be informed and number of votes of each meeting
agenda shall be clearly concluded. During the meeting. Shareholders were invited to raise questions or express
their concerns to the meeting. The Chairman of the Board or an appropriate Board member would then respond

to the questions. The minutes of the meeting was taken and recorded for shareholders to access.




The Company had provided options to shareholders fo appoint independent direcfors as their proxies in case of

their absence.

(2) Board of Directors

At present, the Board consists of nine members of knowledgeable and experienced persons in relevant businesses
and industries who are also represent shareholders. Number of the independent directors should equal or not less
than one-third of the Board members. The election and appointment of the Board of Director would be conducted
in the shareholders” meeting under the following criterion.

1. Each shareholder has one vote per share.

2. Each shareholder may use his enfire vote to elect one or more directors as the meetfing of shareholders seems
appropriate.

3. In each voting shareholder shall vote with votes according to number of shares held and shall not divide his/her
votes in any proportion for any particular person.

The candidates shall be ranked in order descending from the highest number of votes received o the lowest,
and shall be appointed as directors in that order. The meeting of shareholders may pass a resolufion removing any
director from office prior fo vacancy as a result of the fermination of the ferm of office of the director, by a vote
of not less than three-fourths of the number of shareholders aftending the meeting and having the right to vote
and the total number of shares being not less than half of the number of shares held by the shareholders attending

the meeting and having the right to vote.

For the Board meetings, the Company dlways serves a notice to attend the meeting and other related information
to each Board member at least seven days in advance. In doing so, each Board member will have time to
review the nofice and related information prior fo the attendance. All minutes of the meetings are taken and
recorded in writing and it shall be sent all members of the Board. In addition, one copy of minutes of meeting

shall be retained at the Company’s premise and make it available for inspection by authorized person.

In 2011, the Board of Directors Meetings were convened six times and an Annual General Meeting of Shareholders

was held on April 28, 2011, details of which are as follows:

Name Number of meeting attendance/Number of Meetings

. Dhiraporn Srifuengfung 7/7

. Athaporn Khaimarn 717

. Kenneth Lee White 717

. Yeap Swee Chuan 5/7

. Richard John Fleming 6/7

. Phiphat Vorapipat 717

. Suftipong Wannawanit 7/7




Name Number of meeting attendance/Number of Meetings

8. Mr. Ng Ching Yong 6/7

9. Mr. Quek Khai Whatt 6/7

10. Mr. Brad S. Lakhia 0/0

11. Mr. Mark Chandran Ravunni 0/0

Changes of Board of Directors during 2011:

1. Mr. Richard John Fleming resigned from his directorship on December 14, 2011. Mr. Brad Lakhia has been
appointed as Director in lieu of Mr. Richard John Fleming on December 14, 2011.
2. Mr. Ng Ching Yong resigned from his directorship on December 14, 2011. Mr. Mark Chandran Ravunni has been

appointed as Director in lieu of Mr. Ng Ching Yong on December 14, 2011.

The Board of Directors has the following duties and responsibilities:
1. To lead and manage the company based on the Company’s vision and missions

2. To protect the acquisition and management of the Company’s assets for the benefit of the Company

3. To act in compliance with laws, regulafions and resolutions of the Shareholders’ Meeting

4. To hold at least one meeting every three months

5. To transact any duty as assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company that may authorize to one or

several directors or other persons to perform duties on behalf of directors in certain matters

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

According to Principles of Good Governance, a public company should have independent directors, at least
one third of the Board members, who give frank opinions related to important matter without domination from
other interest group referred to as “Independent Directors”. The company shall have three Independent Directors
from nine-member of the Board of Directors or the equivalent of 33.33 percent, which is equivalent to the
minimum standard, namely as follows:

1. Mr. Athaporn Khaimarn

2. Mr. Kenneth Lee White

3. Mr. Yeap Swee Chuan

The Company defined the definition of Independent Directors, with intensive requirements beyond minimum  standard

of requirements of the SET and the SEC as detailed below:

1. Independent Directors shall not have any business relationship or work with any company that may affect

an independent decision of them.




2. Independent Directors shall not hold more than 0.5 per cent of the paid-up capital of the Company, ifs

affiliated company, related company. Shares held by independent directors shall include those held by their
connected persons.

3. Independent Directors shall not be involved in any management of the Company and its affiliated company,
related company or connected company or in major shareholders of the Company. Independent Directors shall
not be any consultant giving advice for a fixed income of the Company and its aoffiliated company, related
company or connected company or major shareholder of the Company.

4. Independent Directors shall not have stakes or hold stake either directly or indirectly in the finance and
management of the Company or its aoffliated company, related company or connected company or the major
shareholder of the Company.

5. Independent Directors shall not be related fo or be a relafive of senior management or major shareholders
of the Company

6. Independent Directors must pass a procedure of selection of the Board of Directors.

(3) The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent directors appointed by the Company’s Board of Directors.

Chairman of the Audit Committee must not be chairman of any other committee.
The Audit Committee has the following duties and scope of responsibilities:

1. To review the Company’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate.
2. To review the Company’s internal control and internal audit systems to ensure that they are suitable and
efficient; to determine the infernal audit unit’s independence; and to approve an appointment, fransfer and
dismissal of the chief of the internal audit unit or any other unit in charge of internal auditing.
3. To monitor the compliances with the laws on securitfies and exchange, the SET's regulafions and the laws
relafing fo the Company’s business.
4. To consider, select and nominate an independent person as the Company’s auditor and to propose his/her
remunerafion; to affend a non-management meeting with the auditor af least once a year.
5. To review related transactions or transactions that may lead to a conflict of interests to ensure that they
comply with the SET's laws and regulations and that they are reasonable and for the maximum benefit of the
Company.
6. To prepare and disclose at least the following information in the Company’s annual report and the Audit
Committee’s report, which are to be signed by the Audit Committee’s Chairman. The report shall consist of at
least the following:

(a) Opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the Company’s financial report;

(b) Opinion on an adequacy of the Company’s internal control system;

(c) Opinion on the Company’s compliance with the law on securities and exchange., the SET's regulations or

the laws relafing to the Company’s business;




(d) Opinion on the creditworthiness of an auditor;
(e) Opinion on fransactions with possible conflict of infterests;
® A number of the Audit Committee meetfings and the number of aftendance of each committee member;
(@ Opinion or an overnview comment received by the Audit Committee in regard fo its performance in accordance
with the charter; and
(h) Other transactions which, according to the Audit Committee’s opinion, should be known to shareholders
and generadl investors, subject to the scope of dutfies and responsibilities assigned by the Company’s Board of
Directors.

7. To perform any other act as designated by the Company’s Board of Directors upon the audit committee’s

approval.

Detailed information on the number of meeting affendance of the Audit Committee in 2011 is as follows:

Name Number of meeting attendance/Number of Meetings

Mr. Athaporn Khaimarn 4/4

Mr. Kenneth Lee White 4/4

Mr. Yeap Swee Chuan 3/4

(4) The Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

The Nomination and Corporate Govemnance Committee consists of directors appoinfed by the Company’s Board
Directors.

The Nominafion and Corporate Governance member has following dutfies and responsibilities:
. Evaluate and select or recommend the Board of Directors related to election of directors.
. Establish criteria for selecting new directors; and identify and actively seek individuals qualified as directors.
. Consider director candidates proposed by shareholders.
. Review and make recommendations to the Board concerning structure, size and composition including skills,
knowledge and experience of the Board for the Board’'s efficiency as the whole.
5. Ildentify existing directors who are due for re-election by rotation at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.
6. Review the Board’'s performance appraisal; annually
7. Develop and review, at least annually, the principle of conduct; give opinions related to change of the Board.
8. Review and make recommendations pursuant to the corporate governance issues prevailing from time to tfime.
9. Review disclosures of information relating to statements in the Annual Reports detaiing the Committee’s activities

10. Perform other duties and responsibilities relating to the Committee as delegated by the Board from time to fime




Detailed information on the number of attendance of the Nomination and Corporate Governance Committee

in 2011 is below:

Name Number of attendance/Number of Meetings

. Kenneth Lee White 3/3

. Yeap Swee Chuan 2/3

. Phiphat Vorapipat 3/3

. Dhiraphorn Srifuengfung 3/3

(5) Executive Directors

Executive Directors have duties fo operate and manage the Company to achieve the goadls set up each year.
The Company appoints Managing Director and other Directors as Executive Directors. Current executive directors are:
1. Mr. Richard John Fleming Managing Director Goodyear ASEAN (upto 14 December 2011)
2. Mr. Suttipong Wannawanit Managing Director
3. Mr. Phiphat Vorapipat Director Product Supply ASEAN/ Manager of Aviation Supply Chain APAC
4, Mr. Mark Chandran Ravunni  Finance Director
Note:
1. Mr. Richard John Fleming resigned from his directorship on December 14, 2011. Mr. Brad Lakhiahas been
appoinfed as Director in lieu of Mr. Richard John Fleming on December 14, 2011.
2. Mr. Ng Ching Yong resigned from his directorship on December 14, 2011. Mr. Mark Chandran Ravunni has been

appointed as Director in lieu of Mr. Ng Ching Yong on December 14, 2011.

RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Company respects the rights of Shareholders including ifs rights fo attend and vote af the Annual General

Meeting of Shareholders. Shareholders have a right to vote, freely express their concerns or suggestions relating
to transactions of the Company. Shareholders have a right to vote in the light of major changes of the Company
e.g. an appointfment of audifor, an approval of dividend payment, approval of connected fransactions and others.
The Company always prepares and issues a nofice to affend the meeting with details of the venue, date, fime
and relevant information and send them to shareholders and the Company Registrar at least seven days prior to
the meeting. The notfice to attend the meeting is also posted on a newspaper in advance before the meeting

date for 3 consecutfive days.




EQUITABLE TREATMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Company highly regards and equally freafs all shareholders fo ensure confidence among investors. Adequate
time is allocated for shareholders to express their opinions, ask questions and exercise their rights to elect directors.
The Company’s shareholders have rights tfo assign a proxy to affend and vote af the AGM on their behalf. Also,
shareholders are allowed to authorize independent directors to represent them at the AGM. Profile of our

independent directors is enclosed with a notice of the Shareholders Meeting.

RIGHTS OF STAKEHOLDERS

The Company takes info account the rights of stakeholders under the laws, regulations and other covenants. The
Company’s Manual of Business Conduct is a guideline for employees to comply with and tfo respect. This manual
promotes commitment among employees to fulfil the Company’s goals. Respect to customers, suppliers and shareholders

demonstrate that the Company is committed to corporate integrity and business ethics.

In addition, the Company has an obligation fo other stakeholders, in particular the community and its employees.
The Company has made commitment to comply with laws and regulatfions of government agencies e.g. Deparfment
of Industrial Works (Ministry of Industry) and Pollution Control Department, among a few. The Company’s commitment
is above minimum standards set forth by the government. Cooperation of all employees in the Company is a key

for us to successfully meet all stakeholder obligations.




DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Working Experience in 5 years

- , No. of Shares Family
Name-Surname/Position | Age Education N PP zation/
held (%) Relationship Period Period ame O rganizafrion

company/type of business

1. Mr. Boonsong Srifuengfung 87 Honorable Doctorate Degree 1.38 Father of Director 1992-Present Honorary Chairman Pimai Salt Co., Lid.

Honorary Chairman in Business Administration, No. 2 Krung Thai Panich Insurance Co., Ltd

Sripatum - University Ackchai Eagle Co., Ltd.

Ackchai Export & Import Co., Ltd

2. Mr. Dhiraphorn Srifuengfung 63 PhD (Civil Engineering), 0.45 Son of Honorary 1992-Present Executive Director Pimai Salt Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Board/ University of Missouri, USA Chairman Krung Thai Panich Insurance Co., Ltd

Nomination and Corporate Ackchai Eagle Co., Ltd.

Governance Committee Ackchai Export & Import Co., Ltd

3. Mr. Athaporn Khaimarn 68 Associate Member of The - - 1999-Present Independent Director Siam Makro Public Company

Independent Director/
Chairman of Audit

Committee

Institute of Chartered

Accountants in Australia

Associateship in Accounting
Western Australia Institute of
Technology, (Now - Curtin

University of Technology)

IOD — DCP and DAP

1992 - 1996

and Chairman of Limited

Audit Committee.

Managing Director PriceWaterhouse, Bangkok
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Name-Surname/Position

Education

No. of Shares
held (%)

Family

Relationship

Working Experience in 5 years

Period

Name of Organization/
company/type of business

Period

4. Mr. Kenneth Lee White
Independent Director/
Audit Committee/
Nomination and Corporate

Govemance Committee

BA - University of Puget
Sound,USA

BA - University of Puget
Sound, USA.

BA - Netherlands School of

Business, Netherlands

IOD - DCP Certificate, Fellows

Certificate, Chairman Course

2005- Present

2001—Present

Managing Director Pacific Siam Strategic Consulfing

Co., Lid

Director Finansa Public Company Lid.

Minor Intferational Public Company

Limited

Finansa Asset Management Ltd.

5. Mr. Yeap Swee Chuan
Independent Director/
Audit Committee/
Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee

Bachelor Degree (Industrial
Management and Engineering),

Massey University, New Zealand

2002-Present

Present

President and CEO Aapico Hitech Public Company Limited

Director New Era Sales Co., Ltd.

AAPICO Amata Co., Lid.

Able Motors Co., Ltd.

AAPICO Engineering Co., Ltd.
AAPICO Hitech Parts Co., Ltd.
APPICO Hitech Tooling Co., Ltd.
Able ITS Co., Ltd.

AAPICO Jackspeed Co., Ltd.
AAPICO Mitsuike CO., Ltd.

Katsuya (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
AAPICO Forging PCL

AAPICO Plastics PCL

Able Sanoh Industries (1996) Co., Lid.
Sanoh Industries (Thailand) Co., Ltd.




DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Working Experience in 5 years

Name-Surname/Position | Age Education No. of Shares Famly
held (%) Relationship Period Period Name of Organization/
company/type of business

6. Mr. Richard John Fleming 49 One year Intemational Exchange - - 2005-2011 Director Goodyear Malaysia Berhad
Managing Director ASEAN Program, Washingfon C.H.
(From January 1 to High-Ohio, USA
December 14, 2011)

Higher School Certificate 1988-2005 Business General Eastman Kodak — New Zealand,

Pukekohe High School - Manager Singapore, India, China

New Zeadland
7. Phiphat Voraphiphat 34 International MBA and MSIT, - - 2011-Present Product Supply Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company

Executive Director/
Nomination and Corporate

Governance Committee

University of Denver, USA

Bachelor of Business
Administration (BBA), Kasetsart

University

2008-2011

2007-2008

2005-2007

2003-2005

2003

Director - ASEAN
Supply Chian &
Customer Service

Director

Regional Customer

Service Manager

Supply Management

Support Manager

Management Trainee

Supply Chain Project

Development

Limited

Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company

Limited

Unilever Thai Trading Limited

Unilever Thai Trading Limited

Unilever Thai Trading Limited

Cencar Co., Ltd. (Carrefour)
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Name-Surname/Position

Education

No. of Shares
held (%)

Family

Relationship

Working Experience in 5 years

Period

Period

Name of Organization/
company/type of business

8. Mr. Suttipong Wannawanit

Managing Director

(@) MBA-Marketing Management,

Chulalongkorn  University

() Bachelor Degree in Economics,

Thamamasat  University

2011 - Present

2005 - 2009

2005 - 2005

2003 - 2005

Managing Director

Head of Marketing

AVP - Marketing

Marketing Director

(Lubricants)

Goodyear (Thaiand) Public Company Limited

DHL Express Internatfional (Thailand) Ltd

TOA Paint (Thailand) Co., Ltd

Caltex Oil (Thailand) Limited

9. Mr. Ng Ching Yong

Director

Bachelor Degree (Management),
the University of Science,

Malaysia

2009-Present

2008 - 2009

2005 - 2008

General Manager,

Aviation Tires, AP

General Manager

Digital Product
Business Manager
(ASEAN and

Distributor Countries)

Goodyear Singapore Tire

Goodyear Singapore Tire

Kodak (Singapore) Private Limited

10. Mr. Quek Khai Whatt

Director

Bachelor Degree — Finance,

University of Texas (Austin), USA

2007-Present

Finance Director and

Regional Treasurer

Goodyear Orient Company Private

Limited




DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

Working Experience in 5 years

- , No. of Shares Family
Name-Surname/Position | Age Education N PP ization/
held (%) Relationship Period Period ame of Organizarion
company/type of business
11. Mr. Brad S. Lakhia 40 Master of Business Administration, - - July 2010-Current Finance Director - The Goodyear Tire & Rubber
Director Case Western Reserve University, ASEAN Company
USA. September 2009- VP-Finance, Global The Goodyear Tire and Rubber
Jul 2010 Procurement Company
Bachelor of Science (Accounting),
The Ohio State University, USA March 2008 - VP-Financial Planning The Goodyear Tire and Rubber
September 2009 & Analysis Company
March 2007- Assistant Treasurer, The Goodyear Tire and Rubber
March 2008 Operations Company
February 2005- Finance Director & The Goodyear Tire and Rubber
March 2007 Regional Treasurer Company
June 2003- International Treasury The Goodyear Tire and Rubber
February 2005 Manager Company
12. Mr. Mark Chandran 44 Bachelor Degree - Accountancy - - 2011 - Present Finance Director Goodyear (Thaiand) Public Conpany Limited
Ravunni

Executive Director

Chartered Association of Certified
Accountants (UK)

2007 - 2011
2004 - 2007
1999 - 2004
1997 - 1999
1994 - 1997

1992 - 1994

Asian Operations
Controller

CFO/COO

Financial Controller

Finance Manager

Accounting Manager

Senior Audit

Ansell Shared Services Asian Operations
Controller

Basis Bay Sdn Bhd, Malaysia

Polyfelt Asia Sdn Bhd

Western Digital, Malaysia

Cargill Group of Companies in

Malaysia
KPMG Peat Marwick




AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying statements of financial position as at 31 December 2011 and 2010, and the
related statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in shareholders” equity and cash flows for the
years then ended of Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited. The Company’s management is responsible for
the correctness and completeness of information in these financial statements. My responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements based on my audits.

| conducted my audits in accordance with generaly accepted auditing standards.  Those standards require that
| plan and perform the audit fo obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.  An audit includes examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accountfing principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. | believe that my audits

provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

In my opinion, the financial statements refered to above present faidy, in all material respects, the financial position
as at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the results of its operations and cash flows for the years then ended of Goodyear

(Thailand) Public Company Limited in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

7. 2k

Prasit  Yuengsrikul

Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4174

PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited

Bangkok

20 February 2012




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Restricted short-term investment

Trade accounts receivable - third parties, net
Trade accounts receivable - related parties
Amounts due from related parties

Current portion of loan to a related party
Inventories, net

Value added tax for refund

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Loan to a related party

Property, plant and equipment, net

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Director

The accompanying notes on page 91 fo 116 are an infegral part of these financial statements.

935,583,794
65,000,000
162,858,295
138,909,285
46,183,194
315,505,000
457,037,557
62,592,122

65,644,571

2249313818

1.895,364,788

4,398,148

1,899,762 936

4,149076,754

758,718,282
65,000,000
217,136,683
555,535,279
51,182,111
547,316,676
48,585,302

38.278.220

2,281,752,553

300,063,000
1.529,500.898
4,009,515

1.833,573.413

4,115.325,966




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Statements of Financial Position
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities

Trade accounts payable - third parties
Trade accounts payable - related parties
Other payables

Amounts due to related parties
Withholding tax payable

Advance from an insurer

Accrued expenses

Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Reserves for provident fund and retfirement benefits
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Authorized share capital
7,400,000 ordinary shares at par value
of Baht 10 each
Issued and paid-up share capital
7,400,000 ordinary shares fully paid-up
of Baht 10 each
Premium on share capital
Retained earnings
Appropriated - Legal reserve
Unappropriated

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilittes and shareholders” equity

The accompanying notes on page 91 to 116 are an infegral part of these financial statements.

262,396,830
224,553 419
23,761,134
161,003,800
8,121,198
318.058.925
204,931,607
22,508.183
1.225,335.096

85.476.850
85476850

1.310,811.946

74,000,000

74,000,000
92,000.000

7.400.,000
2.664.,864,808
2,838,264,808

4,149076,754

570.725.333
49,881,453
65.207.517

122,863,549

14,460,124

101,504,520

7.183.738
931,826,234

77 422 489
77 422 489

1.009,248,723

74,000,000

74,000,000
92,000.000

7.400.000
2,932.677.243
3.106,077,243




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Statements of Income

For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Sales

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment
Net gain (loss) on exchange rate

Other income

Seling expenses

Administrative expenses

Directors” and management’s remuneration

Other operating expenses due to flood

Profit (loss) before income tax

Income fax

Net profit (loss) for the year

Basic earnings (loss) per share

Net profit (loss) for the year

The accompanying notes on page 91 fo 116 are an integral part of these financial statements.

4,085,562,634
(3.495,470,163)

590,092,471
1.681.973
35.038.347
21,199,040
(246,148 365)
(124,376.360)
(24,204,396)
(340,149.837)

(86.867.,127)
(32.945,308)

(119.812,435)

(16.19)

4,182,929,201
(3.815,356,227)

367,572,974
454,076,978
(16.694.438)
22,700,161
(257.873.586)
(70.,734.510)
(29.205.627)

469,841,952
(134,991,065)

334.850.887




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Net profit (loss) for the year (119,812,435) 334,850,887
Other comprehensive income

for the year, net of fax

Total comprehensive income (loss)
for the year (119.812,435) 334,850,887

The accompanying nofes on page 91 to 116 are an infegral part of these financial statements.




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Statements of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Beginning balance

as at 1 January 2011
Total comprehensive loss

for the year
Dividends paid (Note 16)
Ending balance

as at 31 December 2011
Beginning balance

as at 1 January 2010
Total comprehensive income

for the year
Dividends paid (Note 16)
Ending balance

as at 31 December 2010

Issued and

paid-up

share capital

Baht

Premium
on share
capital

Baht

Legal

reserve

Baht

Unappropriated

retained
earnings

Baht

(Note 10)

74,000,000

(Note 10)

$2,000,000

(Note 11)

7,400,000

2,932,677.243

(119.812.435)
(148,000,000)

3.106,077,243

(119.,812,435)
(148,000,000)

74,000,000

$2,000,000

7,400,000

2,664,864,808

2,838,264,808

74,000,000

92,000,000

7.400,000

2.708.826.356

334.850.887
(111,000,000)

2.882,226,356

334.850.887
(111,000,000)

74,000,000

92,000,000

7.400.,000

2.932.677.243

3.106.077.243

The accompanying nofes on page 91 to 116 are an infegral part of these financial statements.




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

Cash flows from operating activities 804,897,454 302,748,002
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of plant and equipment (490,234,621) (447.,878,788)

Proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment 6,311,180 478,422,732

Net cash (used in) generated from investing activities (483,923 441) 30,643,944

Cash flows from financing activity

Dividends paid to shareholders (148,000,000) (111,000,000)
Net cash used in financing activity (148,000,000) (111,000,000)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 172,974,013 222,291,946

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 758,718,282 536,750,891
Exchange rate gains (losses) on cash and cash equivalents 3.891.499 (324,555)

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 935,583,794 758,718,282

Non-cash transactions

Significant non-cash fransactions for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Unpaid liabilities for purchases of plant and equipment 78,262,183 101,162,846

The accompanying notes on page 91 fo 116 are an integral part of these financial statements.




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

1 General information
Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited (the “Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and
resident in Thailond. The address of the Company’s registered office is as follows:

50/9 Moo 3. Paholyothin Road, K.M. 36, Khlongnueng. Khlongluang. Pathumthani 12120.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing, distribution and sale of mofor vehicle and aero fires

for domestic and export markets.

These financial statements were approved by the Company’s Directors on 20 February 2012.

2 Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below:

2.1 Basis for preparation

The financial statementfs have been prepared in accordance with Thai generally accepted accounting principles
under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543, being those Thai Accounting Standards issued under the Accounting Profession
Act B.E. 2547, and the financial reporting requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission under the

Securities and Exchange Act.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Thai generally accepted accounting principles requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed

in note 3.

Comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in the curent year as follow:




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

2 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis for preparation (Cont‘d)

The Company has reclassified the presentation of spare parts in the statement of financial position to be more
appropriate based on management’s interpretation of TAS 16. The effects of these reclassifications to the statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2010 are presented as follows:

Previously reported After reclassification

Baht Baht

Inventories, net 397,052,018 547,316,676
Spare parts 176,995,545 -

Property, plant and equipment, net 1,602,770,011 1,529.500,898

The spare parts included in property, plant and equipment are depreciated when used using sfraightine method

over their estimated useful lives.

An English version of the financial statements has been prepared from the statutory financial statements that are
in the Thai language. In the event of a conflict or a difference in interpretation between the two languages.

the Thai language statutory financial statements shall prevail.

2.2 New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards., new interpretation and amendments to
accounting standards

a) New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new interpretation and amendments to accounting
standards effective for the periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2011 and adopted by the Company:

TAS 1 (Revised 2009) Presentation of Financial Statements

TAS 2 (Revised 2009) Inventories

TAS (Revised 2009)  Statement of Cash Flows

TAS (Revised 2009) Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

TAS (Revised 2009) Events affer the Reporting Period

TAS (Revised 2009)  Construction Contracts

TAS (Revised 2009)  Property, Plant and Equipment

TAS (Revised 2009) Leases

TAS (Revised 2009) Revenue




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

2 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new interpretation and amendments to

accounting standards (Cont‘d)
a) New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new interpretation and amendments to accounting

standards effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 and adopted by the Company: (Cont'd)

TAS 19 Employee Benefits

TAS 23 (Revised Borrowing Costs

TAS 24 (Revised Related Party Disclosures

TAS 26 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit Plans
TAS 27 (Revised Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

TAS 28 (Revised Investments in Associates

TAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

TAS 31 (Revised Interests in Joint Ventures

TAS 33 (Revised Earnings per Share

TAS 34 (Revised Interim Financial Reporting

TAS 36 (Revised Impairment of Assets

TAS 37 (Revised Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
TAS 38 (Revised Infangible Assets

TAS 40 (Revised Investment Property

TFRS 2 Share-based Payment

TFRS 3 (Revised Business Combinations

TFRS 5 (Revised Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
TFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources
TFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate

TSIC 31 Revenue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising Services




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

2 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards., new interpretation and amendments to
accounting standards (Cont‘d)
a) New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new inferpretation and amendments to accounting

standards effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 and adopted by the Company: (Cont'd)

The Company wil apply these new accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new interpretation
and amendments to accountfing standards (collectively “accounting standards”) from 1 January 2011. The Company’s
management has determined that these accounting standards will not significantly impact the financial statements
being presented excepted as disclosed in the following paragraphs.

TAS 1 (Revised 2009), the revised standard will prohibit the presentation of ifems of income and expenses in the
statement of changes in shareholders” equity. Entities can choose whether to present one statement (the statement
of comprehensive income) or two statements (the income statement and statement of comprehensive income).
Where entities restate or reclassify comparative information, they will be required to present a restated statement
of financial position as at the beginning comparative period in addition to the current requirement to present
statement of financial position at the end of the current period and comparative period. However, for the
financial statements which period beginning on or after 1 January 2011 and are the first period applying this
standard, an entity can choose to present statement of financial position only two statements without the statement
of financial position as at the beginning comparative period. The Company chose to present the statement of
comprehensive income for two statements which are the statement of income and statement of comprehensive
income. Therefore, the Company has changed its presentation of the statement of income for the year ended

31 December 2010 to conform with the current year presentation.

TAS 16 (Revised 2009), the revised standard requires that an ifem of plant and equipment with a cost that is
significant in relafion to the fotal cost of the item shall be depreciated separately. The revised standard also

requires an entity to review useful life, residual value and depreciation method at least at each financial year.

In compliance with revised TAS 16, the Company has performed a review of the useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method of property, plant and equipment to be more appropriate with the current use of
assets. The Company has changed the depreciation method of machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures
and motor vehicles acquired from 1993 onwards from the sum-of-the-year-digits method to be the straight-line
method. The Company changed the estimated residual values and useful life and depreciation method by using

prospective adjustments. Below are the comparison of the useful lives between the old and the new ones.




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

2 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards., new interpretation and amendments to
accounting standards (Cont‘d)
a) New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new inferpretation and amendments to accounting

standards effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2011 and adopted by the Company: (Cont'd)

Old useful life New useful life

(years) (years)

Land improvements

Building - acquired in and affer 1993
Building - acquired prior to 1993
Machinery and equipment

Fumniture, fixtures and office equipment

Motor vehicles

The effect from the changes was fully reflected in the year ended 31 December 2011. The depreciation
the old and new accounting policies can be summarised as follows:
Old accounting policy New accounting policy

Baht Baht

Depreciation charges for the

year ended 31 December 2011 343,426,612 124,283,296

TAS 19 deals with accounting for employee benefits. The standard requires the entity fo use the Projected Unit
Credit method. Currently, the Company already uses this calculation method. Therefore, the management believes
that applying this standard from 1 January 2011 will have no significant impact except the disclosure of additional

information in the notes to financial statements.




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

2 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.2 New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards., new interpretation and amendments to
accounting standards (Cont‘d)

b) New accounting standards, new financial reporting standards, new inferpretation and amendments to accounting
stfandards effective for the periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013 and have nof been early adopted

by the Company:

TAS 12 Income taxes

TAS 20 (Revised 2009) Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
TAS 21 (Revised 2009) The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates

TSIC 10 Government Assistance - No Specific Relation to Operating Activities

TSIC 21 Income Taxes - Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets

TSIC 25 Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity or its Shareholders

The Company does not eary adopt these accounting standards before effective date. The Company’s management

is currently assessing the impact of applying these accounting standards.

TAS 12 deadls with taxes on income, comprising current tax and deferred tax. Current fax assets and liabilities
are measured af the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using tax rates
and tax law that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred
taxes are measured based on the temporary difference between the tax base of an asset or liability and its
carrying amount in the financial statements and using the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is redlised or the liability is seftled, based on tax rates and tax law that have been enacted

or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The standard requires retrospective adjustment.

TAS 21 (Revised 2009) requires an entity fo determine its functional currency which is a currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates. Foreign currency transactions are required to be translated
into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevaiing at the dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the setflement of such fransactions and from translation at year-end exchange
rate of monetary items denominated in foreign currency are recognised in profit or loss of that period. The
operating results and financial position of the Company that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated in the presentation currency by a) assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate
of the date of the statements of financial position b) income and expenses are translated at exchange rate
at the date of the fransactions and ¢) all resulting exchange rate differences are recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income. The standard requires retrospective adjustment.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont'd)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

Foreign currency fransactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevaiing at the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominafted in foreign currency are franslated to Thai Baht at the exchange rate
prevailing at the statement of financial position date. Gains and losses resulting from the settflement of such
tfransactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the statements of income.

2.4 Financial instruments

Financial assets carried on the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, short-term
investment, frade accounts receivable, amount due from related parties and other financial assets.  Financial
liabilities carried on the statement of financial position include frade accounts payable, amounts due fo related
parties and other financial liabilities. The methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statement

associated with each item.

Forward contracts are recognised at fair values. Fair values are obtained from quoted market prices. Changes

in fair values are reflected in the statement of income.

2.5 Cash and cash equivalents
Caosh and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term  highly

liquid investments with maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

2.6 Trade accounts receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recognised inifially at the original invoice amount and subsequently measured ot
the remaining amount less allowance for doubtful receivables based on a review of all oufstanding amounts at
the year end. The amount of the allowance is the difference between the carrying amount of the receivable
and the amount expected to be collectible. Bad debts are written off during the year in which they are identified

and recognised in the statements of income.

2.7 Inventories

Inventories are stafed af the lower of cost or net redlisable value. Cost is determined by the weighted averoge
method. The cost of purchase comprises both the purchase price and costs directly atfributable to the acquisition
of the inventory, such as import duties and transportation charges, less all attributable discounts, allowances or
rebates. The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads. Net realisable value is the estimate of the seling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the costs of completion and selling expenses. Allowance is made, where necessary, for

obsolete, slow-moving and defective inventories.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’'d)
2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation.

Land is not depreciated as it is deemed to have an indefinite life. Al other fixed assets are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives. The straight-ine method is used for depreciation of all types of fixed assefs. The estimated

useful life of each category of fixed assets is as follows:

Land improvements - 44 years
Building - 40 years
Machinery and equipment - 30 years
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment - 20 years

Motor vehicles 4 years

Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is wriffen down

immediately to ifs recoverable amount.

Repairs and maintenance are charged to the statements of income during the financial period in which they are
incurred. The cost of major renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that
future economic benefits in excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow

to the Company. Major renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carying amount and are included

in the statements of income.

2.9 Impairment of assets
Property, plant and equipment and other non-current assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events

or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is

recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds ifs recoverable amount which is

the higher of an asset’'s net seling price and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest level for which there is separately identifiable cash flows. Assets that suffered impairment
are reversed for possible impairment loss when the estimation of the recoverable amount was changed in subsequent

period affer the Company’s recognition of impairment.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’'d)

2.10 Accounting for leases - where the Company is the lessee
Leases not transferring a significant porfion of the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee are classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged fo the statement of income on a sfraight-line

basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminafed before the lease period has expired, any payment required to be made

to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which fermination takes place.

2.11 Income taxes

The Company does not recognise income taxes payable or receivable in future periods in respect of temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements.  The principal temporary differences arise from depreciation of property, plant and equipment, allowance

for doubtful accounts and reserves for provident fund and retirement benefits.

2.12 Employee benefits

The Company provides for a provident fund and refirement benefits, payable to employees under the Company’s
plan and Thai Labour Law, respectively. The present value of employee benefit liabilities recognised in the statement
of financial position is determined on the Projected Unit Credit method. The assumptions used in determining
the liabilities include discount rate, rates of salary inflation and employee turnover. The discount rate represents
the current yields on high quality corporate fixed-income investments in Thailand. The Company records the
reserves for provident fund and retirement benefits as a non-current liability and charges expenditure to the

statements of income in the year to which it relates.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged

or credited to statements of income in the period in which they arise.

2.13 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an oufflow of resources will be required to seftle the obligation, and a reliable estimate
of the amount can be made. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, for example under
an insurance contfract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement

is virtually certain.
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2 Accounting policies (Cont’'d)

2.14 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the invoice value for the sale of goods net of oufput tax, rebates and discounts. Revenue
from sales of goods is recognised when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are fransferred

to the buyer.

Interest income is recognised on a fime proportion basis, faking account of the principal outstanding and the

effective rate over the period to maturity, when it is determined that such income will accrue to the Company.

2.15 Dividends paid
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial statements in the
period in which the interim dividends are approved by the Board of Directors and the annual dividends are

approved by the Company’s shareholders.

3 Ciritical accounting estimates, assumptions and judgements
Estimates, assumptions and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and

other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Carrying value of property, plant and equipment

The estimated useful economic lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment are based upon
management’s judgement and experience. When management identifies that actual useful lives and residual
values differ materially from the estimates used to calculate depreciation, that charge is adjusted prospectively.
Due to the significance of investment in property, plant and equipment by the Company, variations between

actual and estimated useful lives and residual values could impact operafing results both positively or negatively.

4 Capital risk management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability fo confinue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
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5 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand 59,453

Deposits held at call with banks 935,524,341

114,579

758,603,703

935,583,794

758,718,282

As at 31 December 2011, the weighted average effective interest rate of deposits held at call with banks was

0.60% per annum (2010: 0.59% per annum).

6 Trade accounts receivable - third parties, net

2011
Baht

2010
Baht

Trade accounts receivable - third parties 180,248,368

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (17.390,073)

238,496,926
(21.360.243)

162,858,295

217,136,683

Outstanding frade accounts receivable - third parties as af 31 December can be analysed as follows

2011
Baht

2010
Baht

Current 136,611,993
Overdue:
1 - 3 months 21,945,138
4 - 12 months 6,995,041
Over 12 months 14,696,196

207,181,450

8.088.427
2,962,348
20,264,701

180.248.368

Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (17.,390,073)

238.496.926
(21.360.243)

162,858,295

217,136,683
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7 Inventories, net

Raw materials
Spare parts
Work in progress
Finished goods

Goods in transit

Less Allowance for obsolete and defective inventories
- raw materials
- spare parts
- work in progress

- finished goods

235,074.323
146.815.546

72,624,985
144,829,609

84,944,943

143.537.535
150,264,658

36,000,342
199,353,709

22,244,601

684,289,406

(128,942,490)
(15.498.439)
(66.234,623)

16.576,297)

551,400,845

(4.084.169)

457,037,557

547,316,676
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8 Property, plant and equipment, net

As at 1 January 2010
Cost

Less Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

For the year ended 31 December 2010
Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfers

Disposals, net

Depreciation charges (Note 12)

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2010

Cost

Less Accumulated depreciation

Net book amount

Land and

building

Baht

763,913,276
(351,575,363)

412,337,913

412,337,913

50,671,138
(11,672,165)
(34,638,669)
416,698,217
796,568,578

(379.870,361)

416,698,217

Machinery
and
equipment

Baht

3.854,577,162
(3,043,979.375)

810,597,787

810,597,787
132,469,255
(56,033,600)
(397,191,551
540,841,891
3.905,197,561

(3.364,355,670)

540,841,891

Furniture, Motor Assets under

fixtures and vehicle installation Total
office equipment

Baht Baht Baht Baht
291,566,329 18,680,155 173,296,855 5,102,033,777
(282,227 937) (4,080,339 - (3,681,863,014)
9,338,392 14,599,816 173,296,855 1,420,170,763
9,338,392 14,599,816 173,296,855 1,420,170,763
- 2,021,550 573,570,971 575,772,521
4,171,179 - (187.,311,572) -
(385,853) (6,903,603) (1,350,533) (24,345,754)
(6,179,767) (4,086,645) - (442,096 ,632)
6,943,951 6,631,118 558,385,721 1,529,500,898
274,803,381 14,393,325 558,385,721 5,549,348,566
(267 .,859,430) (7.,762,207) - (4,019,847 668)
6,943,951 6,631,118 558,385,721 1,5629,500,898

103
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8 Property, plant and equipment, net (Cont’d)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
Opening net book amount

Additions

Transfers

Disposals, net

Depreciation charges (Note 12)

Impairment  loss

Closing net book amount

As at 31 December 2011

Cost

Less Accumulated depreciation
Allowance for impairment loss

Net book amount

Land and

building

Baht

416,698,217

73,515,856

(19,126,418)
(3,198,928)

467,888,727

870,084,433
(398,996,778)
(3,198,928)
467,888,727

Machinery
and
equipment

Baht

540,841,891

126,189,081
(481,714)
(102,381,601)

(56.276,437)

558,891,220

4,021,118,135
(3.456,950,478)
(6,276,437)

558,891,220

Furniture,
fixtures and
office equipment

Baht

Motor

vehicle

Assets under

installation

6,943,951

249,525

(2,254,832)
(37.530)

(620,445)

558,385,721
503,289,287
(199.954,462)
(4,147 ,492)

4,901,114

6,110,673

857,573,054

1.529,500.898
503,289,287

(4,629,206)
(124,283,296)

(8.512,895)

1.895,364,788

275,062,907
(270,114,263)
(37.530)

14,393,325
(8.282,652)

857,573,054

4,901,114

6,110,673

857,573,054

As at 31 December 2011, the gross carrying amount of fully depreciated plant and equipment that stfill in use amounts fo Baht 2,321 million (2010:

6,038,221,854
(4,134,344,171)
(8.512,895)
1.895,364,788

Baht 2,206 million).

The impairment charge of Baht 8,512,895 in 2011 for plant and equipment was made during the year as a result of flood (Note 23) and equipment which cannot be used.

The recoverable amount was determined at the component level of assets. The recoverable amount represents the estimated residual value of each impaired asset.
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9 Reserves for provident fund and retirement benefits
2011 2010
Baht Baht
Statements of financial position
Reserve for provident fund 36,562,226 32,604,582

Reserve for retirement benefits 48 914,624 44,817 907
85.476,850 77 422,489

Statements of income
Provident fund 7,774,159 7.421,123
Retirement benefits 8,740,243 5,010,207

16,514,402 12,431,330

The movement in the defined benefit obligations over the year is as follows:

2011 2010

Baht Baht
At 1 January 77.422 489 74,716,957
Current service cost 11,558,293 9.174,689
Interest cost 3.890.543 3.256,641
Past service cost 936.797 -
Actuarial gains 128,769 -

Benefits paid (8,460,041 (9.725,798)

At 31 December 85,476,850 77 422,489

Of the total charge, Baht 9062270 and Baht 7.452,132 (2010: Baht 8,098,682 and Baht 4,332,648) were included

in “cost of goods sold” and ‘seling and administrative expenses’ respectively.

The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

Discount rate

Future salary increase rate
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10 Share capital and premium on share capital
Premium
Number of Share on share
ordinary capital capital
shares Baht Baht

At 1 January 2010 7.400,000 74,000,000 92,000,000

Issue of shares - - -

At 31 December 2010 7.400,000 74,000,000 92,000,000

Issue of shares - - -

At 31 December 2011 7.400,000 74,000,000 92,000,000

Share capital represents authorized ordinary shares with a par value of Baht 10 per share (2010: Baht 10 per share).

All issued shares are fully paid.

11 Legal reserve

Under the Public Companies Act, B.E. 2535, the Company is required to set aside as a legal reserve atf least
5% of profit arisen from the business of the Company affer accumulated deficit brought forward (if any) af
each dividend declaration until the reserve is not less than 10% of the registered share capital. This reserve

is non-distrioutable.

12 Expense by nature
The following expenditure items, clossified by nature, have been charged in ariving at the operating profit (Ioss):
2011 2010
Baht Baht

Raw materials and supplies used 1.991,739,145 2,016,988,581
Staff costs 421,199,940 427,652,720
Royalty fee (Note 21) 159,329,227 185,349,969
Management fee (Note 21) 128,855,896 137.727 872
Depreciation (Note 8) 124,283,296 442,096,632
Advertising and promotion expenses 63,745,347 66,277,756
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13 Other income
2011 2010

Baht Baht
Interest income 11,792,758 13.431.524

Others 9.406.282 9.268.637

21.199.040 22,700,161

14 Promotional privileges

The Company haos received promotion privileges from the Board of Investment under a promotion cerfificate issued
on 23 January 2008 for manufacturing of rubber compound. The main privileges include exemption of import
duty on approved machinery, exemption from certain taxes and dutfies, including exemption from corporate income
tax for a period of 8 years from the dafe of commencement of the Company’'s promoted business. As a promoted

business, the Company is required to comply with the terms and conditions as specified in the promotion cerificate.

For the year ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, there was no revenue derived from BOl-promoted activities.

15 Basic earnings (loss) per share

Basic eamings (loss) per share are calculated by dividing the net profit (loss) attributable to shareholders by the

weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2011 2010

Net profit (loss) attributable to shareholders (Baht) (119,812,435) 334,850,887

Weighted average of issued ordinary shares

during the year (Shares) 7,400,000 7.400,000

Basic earnings (loss) per share (Baht) (16.19)

There are no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue during the years presented.
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16 Dividends paid
At the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders held on 28 April 2011, dividends in respect of the operating

results and retained earnings of 2010 of Baht 25 per share amounting to Baht 185 million were declared and
ratified. The dividend was paid at Baht & per share amounting fo Baht 37 million as inferim dividend on

3 December 2010. The remaining dividends of Baht 20 per share amounting fo Baht 148 milion were paid on

27 May 2011.

At the Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders held on 29 April 2010 approved to pay the dividends in

respect of the operating result and retained earnings of 2009 of Baht 30 per shares amounting to Baht 222 million.

The interim dividend of Baht 20 per share amounting to Baht 148 million were paid on 4 December 2009.

The remaining dividend of Baht 10 per share amounting to Baht 74 million were paid on 29 May 2010.
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17 Cash flows from operating activities

Reconciliation of net profit (loss) before income tax to cash flows from operating activities:
2011 2010
Notes Baht Baht
Net profit (loss) before income tax (86.867.127) 469,841,952

Adjustments for:
Depreciation . 124,283,296 442,096,632
Impairment loss of assets 8,512,895 -
Allowance for doubtful accounts (reversal) (3.970,170) 671,871
Allowance for obsolete and defective
inventories 223,167,680 3.487 557
Gain on disposals of property, plant and
equipment (1.681.974) (454,076.978)
Reserves for provident fund and
retirement benefits 16,514,402 12,431,330
Write off withholding fax 3,085,206 -
Interest income (11,792,758) (13.431.524)
Unredlised (gains) losses on exchange rate (23.061,226) 32,728,192
Changes in operating assefs and liabilities:
- frade accounts receivable - third parties 58,312,460 (24,155,945)
- frade accounts receivable - related parties 416,625,994 (95,750,083)
amounts due from related parties 4,998,917 (8.543.,590)
inventories (132,888.561) (95.606.,252)
value added tax for refund (14,006,820) 4,047 007
other current assets (24,143,524) 11,260,988
other non-current assets (388.633) 2.567.768
tfrade accounts payable - third parties (304,664,678) 204,806,980
frade accounts payable - related parties 120,033,417 (27.413.942)
other payables 137.500 -
amounts due to related parties 38,140,251 31,819,389
withholding tax payable (6,338,926) (8.568,394)
advance from an insurer 318,058,925 -
- accrued expenses 103,427,087 21,677 147
- other current liabilities 15,324,445 153,070
Cash generated from operations 840,818,078 510,043,175
Interest received 11,691,251 13,359,757
Provident fund and refirement benefits paid (8.460,047) (9,725,798)
Income tax paid (39.151,834) (210,929,132
Cash flows from operating activities 804,897,454 302,748,002
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18 Financial instruments

The principal financial risks faced by the Company are exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and credit risk.
Exchange rate risk results from the Company’s export sales and import purchases and long-ferm loan to a related
party. Inferest rate risk relates to the deposits of cash and cash equivalents in financial institutions and other
investments.  Credit risk arises when sales are made on deferred credit terms and in respect of deposits with

financial institutions.

i) Exchange rate risk
The Company has a policy to locally manage the risks arising from fluctuations in currency exchange rates.
Foreign currency forward contracts protect the Company from fluctuation in exchange rates by establishing the

rate at which a foreign currency asset will be realised or a foreign currency liability will be settled.

i) Interest rate risk
The Company earmns inferest on cash and cash equivalents, short-term investment and loan tfo a related party.
The Company manages its inferest rate risks by placing cash, cash equivalents and investments on various

maturities and interest rates.

i) Credit risk
Concentrations of credit risk with respect fo frade accounts receivable are limited since the Company has large
number of customers, covering manufacturing, distribution and end customers. Management believes that no additional

credit risk apart from the amounts provided for collection losses is in the Company’s frade accounts receivable.

The Company does not expose to certain concentfration of credit risk relating to ifs cash and cash equivalents.
The Company places its cash with several high quality institutions. The Company’s policy is not to invest with
any one insfitution but invest with various institutions. The Company places its excess cash in low risk accounts,

high credit quality accounts that matured 90 days. The Company has not experienced any losses on such accounts.

iv) Fair values
The camying amounts of the folowing financial assets and financial liabilities approximate to their fair values: cash
and cash equivalents, frade accounts receivable and payable, amounts due from and to related parties, other

receivables and payables, and long-term loan to a related party.
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19 Significant legal cases

During 2008 and 2009, the Company retrenched certain employees to address the cost of excess capacity
as a result of the rapidly deteriorating demand both globally and locally for tires. The Company paid severance

pay to those employees in accordance with the Labour Proftection Act.

During 2009, 62 dismissed employees filed a case against the Company with the Labour Relations Committee
for additional benefits and compensation claiming that their dismissal was made in violation of the provisions
under the Labour Relation Act B.E. 2518. The Labour Relation Committee ordered that the Company must
pay compensation and re-hire some dismissed employees. On 30 June 2009, the Company filed a complaint
to appeal against the order of the Labour Relations Committee with the Central Labour Court and requested

the revocation of such order.

Also in 2009, an addifional 45 dismissed employees fled a case against the Company with the Central Labour
Court for additional benefits and compensation claiming that their dismissal was made in violafion of the

provisions under the Labour Relation Act B.E. 2518.

During the third quarter of 2011, the Company dlready seffled the above cases and has recognised the amount

of settflement in these financial statements.

20 Commitments

Bank guarantees
As af 31 December 2011, the Company had commitments in respect of bank guarantees amounting to Baht

10.3 million (2010: Baht 10.3 million).

Restricted short-term investment
As at 31 December 2011, the Company pledged its short-term investment to a bank in the form of fixed
deposits amounting tfo Baht 65.0 million (2010: Baht 65.0 million), in respect of banking facilities granted to

third parties.

Capital commitments
As at 31 December 2011, the Company has outstanding capital commitments in respect of the expansion
of plant and production capacity, increased production efficiency and replacement of machinery and equipment

totaling Baht 88.8 million (2010: Baht 293.5 million).
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20 Commitments (Cont’d)
Operating lease commitments - where the Company is the lessee

The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of motor vehicles are as follows:

2011 2010
Baht Baht
Not later than 1 year 1,276,800 891,096

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,656,500 1,262,386

2,833,300 2,153.482

21 Related party transactions

Enterprises and individuals that directly, or indirectly through one or more infermediaries, control, or are controlled
by, or are under common control with, the Company, including holding companies, subsidiaries and fellow
subsidiaries are related parties of the Company. Associates and individuals owning, directly or indirectly, an
inferest in the voting power of the Company that gives them significant influence over the entferprise, key
management personnel, including directors and officers of the Company and close members of the family of

these individuals and companies associated with these individuals also constitute related parties.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of the relationship.

and not merely the legal form.

The Company is confrolled by The Goodyear Tre & Rubber Company (registered and located in the USA), which

owns 66.79% of the Company’s issued shares. The remaining 33.21% of the shares are widely held.

Pricing policies for related party transactions comprise:

Pricing policies

Sales and purchases of goods and machinery Costs plus margin

Royalty fee Percentage of revenues from sales of
products manufactured in Thailand

Production service fee As actual incurred

Management fee As actual incurred
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21 Related party transactions (Cont’d)

The following fransactions were carried out with

i) Sales of goods

Sales of finished goods:
Parent company

Related parties - same common control

i) Purchases of goods and services

Purchases of raw materials and finished goods:
Parent company

Related parties - same common control

Purchases of machinery and spare parts:
Parent company

Related parties - same common control

Royalty fee:

Parent company

Production service fee:

Parent company

Management fee:

Related parties - same common control

and 2010

related parties:

2011
Baht

2010
Baht

333,738,937
2,000,023,530

248,711,738
1.909,109,737

2,333.762,467

2,157,821.475

90,545,822
492,164,140

111,695,114
408,274,124

582,709,962

519,969,238

147 471,662
181,617,511

44,536,650
297,518,602

329.089.173

1569.329.227

2,389,381

128.855.896

137.727.872
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For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

21 Related party transactions (Cont’d)
The following fransactions were carried out with related parties: (Cont’'d)

iilOutstanding balances arising from sales/purchases of goods/services

Trade accounts receivables - related parties:

Parent company 5,506,605 90,457 652

Related parties - same common conirol 133,402,680 465,077,627

138,909,285 555,535,279

Amounts due from related parties:
Parent company 1.370.466 2,944,140

Related parties - same common control 44,812,728 48,237 971

46,183,194

Trade accounts payables - related parties:
Parent company 17,955,923 5,600,296

Related parties - same common control 206,597 496 44,281,157

224,553.419 49.,881.453

Amounts due to related parties:
Parent company 108,252,141 41,856,818

Related parties - same common conirol 52,751,659 81.006.731

161,003,800 122,863,549

iv) Directors’ and management’s remuneration
2011 2010
Baht Baht

Directors’ and management’s remuneration 24,204,396 29,205,627

Directors’ and management’s remunerafion represents salaries, meeting fees and other benefits.




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

21 Related party transactions (Cont’d)

The following fransactions were carried out with related parties: (Cont’'d)

v) Loan to a related party
2011
Baht

Loan to a related party:
Current portion 315,505,000 -
Long-term portion - 300,063,000
315,505,000 300,063,000

As at 31 December 2011, loan to a relafed party represents a loan of US Dollar 10 milion due at any fime
prior to 30 September 2012, bearing interest at the rate of 2.6% per annum or LIBOR plus 1% per annum,

whichever is higher, and is guaranteed by the parent company.

The Company uses forward contfract to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk of the US Dollar loan. The
forward exchange rate was Baht 31.37 per 1 US Dollar which the contract will mature on 28 September 2012.
As at 31 December 2011, the net fair value of the forward contract is unfavorable of Baht 7.9 milion and is

presented under other current liabilities.

The related interest income of the loan was Baht 8.0 million (2010: Baht 8.1 million).

22 Segment information

The Company operates in the business segments, which are ground fires and cero tires. Aero fires are principally
export based products and domestic sales are not significant.  Management believes that no material difference
exists in making an assessment of the Company’s past performance and in making informed judgments about
the Company as a whole if either the business segments or the geographical segments is presented. Therefore, the

Company is reporting geographical segments information based on location of its market, as a single reporting format.

Domestic sales Export sales Total
Year ended 31 December 2011 Baht Baht Baht
Sales 1,735,016 976 2,350,545,658 4,085,562,634

Segment gross profit 465,893,186 124,199,285 590,092,471

Other operating expenses due to
flood (Note 23) (340,149.,837)
Unallocated costs/other income, net (336,809.,761)

Loss before income tax (86.867.127)




Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited
Notes to Financial Statements
For the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010

22 Segment information (Cont‘d)

Domestic sales Export sales Total
Year ended 31 December 2010 Baht Baht Baht

2,007.315,804 2,175,613,397 4,182,929,201

Segment gross profit 320.731.243 46,841,731 367,572,974

Unallocated costs/other income, net 102,268 978

Profit before income tax 469,841,952

The Company does not allocate assets and liabilities which relate joinitly to both segments as there is no reasonable

allocation basis that can be adopte.

23 Impact from flood

Following severe flooding in Thaiond, the Company’s facility in Pathumthani has been flooded which caused the
Company fo close the consumer and aviation fire manufacturing facility on 20 October 2011. The following items

due to this matter were expensed in the financial statements.

Baht

Loss from allowance for defective inventories 193,459,266
Loss from allowance for impairment loss on

property, plant and equipment 3.492 569
Other operating expenses due to flood 143,198,002

340,149,837

The Company is in process of insurance claims. Some of the above ifems are expected fo be recovered from
an insurer. At 31 December 2011, the Company receives an advance from an insurer amounting to Baht
318,058,925 due to the above expenses which is presented as a liability in the financial statements. When the
Company and an insurer are able to finalise the compensation amount for this claim, an advance from an
insurer will be offset with the compensation amount which the difference, if any, will be additionally received
or paid by the Company. Insurance recovery will be recognised in the financial statements when it is virtually

certain.




BUSINESS ATTRIBUTE

Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited was incorporated as private company according to the Civil and
Commercial Code on July 25, 1968 with initial registered capital of 60 milion Baht. Since establishment, this Company
has the primary objectives to manufacture and market passenger tires, commercial truck fires and aviation ftires.
The Company is a joint investment among Thai investors and The Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company, USA.
The Company’ s factory is located at No 50/9, Km. 36, Paholyothin Road, Tambol Klong Nueng., Amphoe Klong Luang.
Pathumthani Province.

In 1969, the Company has made an agreement with the Goodyear Tire and Rubber Company, USA with respect
to the cooperation of manufacturing technology and management.

-n 1970, the Company obtained its investment promotion from the Board of Investment for a period of 15 years.
The Company obtfained the tax exemption for manufacturing and refreading of aviatfion fires thereof.

-n June 30, 1978, the shares of the Company offered to the public and listed in the Stock Exchange of Thaiand.

-n January 6, 1983, the Company changed its shares par value from 100 Baht fo 20 Baht with Department of
Commercial Registration (now known as the Department of Business Development), the Ministry of Commerce.

-n March 28, 1990, the Shareholders’ meeting had the resolufion to increase the registered caopital from 60 milion
Baht to 74 million Baht.

-In April 20, 1994, the Company transformed from the private company under the Civi and Commercial Code
to the public company under the Public Companies Act of 1992. In that year, the Company received the TIS/ISO
9000 Certificate from the Thai Industrial Standard Institute. Goodyear is the first company in the tire manufacturing
industry obtaining this Certificate.

-In November 20, 1995, the Share par value of the Company was transformed from 20 Baht to 10 Bahf,
as approved by the Extraordinary General Meeting Shareholders. This Share par value change was fo comply with
rules of the Stock Exchange of Thailond and this was approved by the Department of Commercial Registration

(now known as Deparfment of Business Development), the Ministry of Commerce in  December 13, 1995,




OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATION ON THE
COMPANY

For the overall of tire industry in the year 2011, passenger fires and pick up fires has confinuously improved and
grown up both for replacement market and original manufacturing market. This was mainly from the global

economic growth.

In the year 2011, the domestic fire industry has an intense competition from the view that the manufactures

and importers of tires, each company, have been used various strategies for their competition to share the market.

In the past year, the Company installed Quad Extruder to increase the capability and efficiency of production

directly to the need of original equipment manufacturers and replacement market.

The Company anticipates that in the year 2012 the competifion environment wil not be different from last year,
depending on various factors, especially high cost of gasoline, increasing value of Thai Baht, infernal and external
economic factors, increasing raw material cost. However the company believes that the company is able fo
mainfain the market share and increase sales volume by expanding Goodyear Aufocare for create and expand
marketing channels of the company’s products as well as will launch the new products responding to the growing

demands of the consumers. As such the Company believes that it will strengthen the growth of the Company

REVENUE STRUCTURE

The Revenue Structure of the Company can be identified as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Revenue Year 2011 % Year 2010 % Year 2009 %
Domestic 1,735 42.47 2,007 47.79 1,690 49.97
Export 2,350 57.53 2,176 52.03 1,692 50.03
Total 4,085 100 4,183 100 3,382 100
Increase (decrease) of Sale (2.34) 23.68 9.2

In year 2011, the total revenue decreased Baht 98 milion or 2.34% when compared to year 2010 because of
flooding during the 4th quarter. Domestic sales decreased by 13.55% because the Company and our customers

have been flooded. The export sales increased 8.00 % due mainly tfo plants closure in Taiwan.
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PRODUCTS OF THE COMPANY

(1) Passenger Tire

The Company redlized that the requirements in using fires of customers are always changed because there are
many new vehicle models confinuously coming out in response to the various targeted customers e.g. SUV, City
Car, efc. In this regard, it affects fo the change in requirements for use of fires. To keep pace with the change
of the market, the Company has paid atftention to the development in 3 ways as follows:

1. Continuously conduct market research of customers preferences, aimed at understanding the tire most

importantcharacteristics in each customer segment needs.

2. Develop goods and services that address the customers’ requirements

3. Develop our human resources to increase the services and create best satisfaction to customers and consumers.

(2) Aviation Tires

The Aviatfion fire market has shown a consistent growth. Growth has been driven largely by an increase in aircraft

fleets in China and India. We continue to serve the market with locally produced bias new and retread tires.

MARKETING AND COMPETITIONS

(1) Passenger Tires

Distribution Channel of the Goods of the Company can be divided into 3 Groups as follows:

Replacement Market: Replacement Market is the market where customers purchase the fires to replace the first
set equipped to vehicles when purchased. The distribution is done through the wholesalers and retailers to the
customers. This replacement market is dramatically expanding because of a recovery of both the global and

Thai economy.

In the year 2011, the Company launched the 4 new models of fires covering the tfargeted segments, namely
(1) Goodyear Eagle F1 Asymetric 2, for high performance sport car that is need the performance tires (2) Goodyear
Eagle F 1 Directional 5, for high performance sport car with style by new generatfion (3) Goodyear Eagle EfficientGrip
for vehicle that needs silent, soft for relaxing during each journey and (4) Goodyear Eagle Assurance FuelMax,

for efficient oil consumption with highest safety.

In addition to the reinforcement of Goodyear brand through the new goods of the Company enhancing the
customers to memorize and entrust in highest safety during driving plus new technology responding to the need
of consumer, the company has expanded the Goodyear Autocare to promote the network distribution and to
provide training to the managers of the Autocare as well as exchange of ideas in management of Goodyear
Autocare efficiently. In addition, the company has contfinuously initiated to arrange activities with general detailers
to promote and sell of Goodyear products including providing the knowledge of and understanding to outstanding

of the Goods to sale forces and technicians in those detailing shops.




Original _Equipment Market (OEM): Thailond is one of automobile manufacture base in Asia Pacific. Last year

the OEM market was affected by crisis both of Tsunami and severe flood, it is however anticipated that the
automobile production will be recovered and grown as usual. Even though the compefition among the tire
manufacturers for OEM will be increased, the Company has remains a frust by the leaders of automobile factories

to deliver tires to their production lines.

Export Market. The Company has disfibutors in various regions and has exported tfires confinuously in the year 2011

with growth from the recovery of global economy.

(2) Aviation Tires

The distribution channel for aviation ftires is through a Goodyear dffiiated company in Singapore. For distribution
within Thailand, the Company sells, markets, and distributed directly to its customers. Last year, domestic sales
growth lagged that of the global industry due to political instability and flood situation and their impacts on

the tourism sector.

PRODUCT SOURCING

Goodyear started ifs first fire production on December 14, 1969 with modem machine and sophisticated  equipment.
The Company has produced high qudlity passenger tires and aviation fires. The Company has always manufactured
quality products by starfing from securing quality raw materials to festing, production control and by listening fo
market feedbacks. Raw materials for use in the fire production are mainly natural rubber, synthetfic rubber, nylon fabric,
chemicals and oils, carbon black, steel cord and bead wire. The Company prefers to purchase raw materials
and choose suppliers on the basis of quality, price and availability of supply. In 2011, the Company purchased

62 % of its raw materials from Thailand based suppliers.

ENVIRONMENT MATTERS

The Company haos ifs fire factory in Rangsit, Pathum Thani Province. This area can be refered to as an industrial
belt as a lot of huge factories are located here. The Company has set up the Health, Safety and Environment
Department, which is directly responsible for reviewing and monitoring health, safety and environmental matters.
The Company has encouraged all employees to engage in production activities with the least possible impact

to our environment,




RISK FACTORS

(1) General Risks

Public debts issue in various countries e.g. United States, European Union countries, etc, affected fo the growth
in economy of China, India, Russia, Brazil and ASEAN. Tsunami in Jopan and the Flood in Thailond aoffected fo
industrial sectors in various countries e.g. Japan, USA, efc, in particular to the automobile industry as Thailand
is the base for equipment production and assembly of Asia fogether with the tendency of gasoline price which
is confinuously rose would widely effect to the Thai economy. These affectations impact to the declining fire
level demand. In addition, the customers of the Company who might be affected by the flood, labor, financial,
would decrease or delay to put purchase orders. As such, it would directly affect to the operation of the Company.
However, the Company has closely monitored these events to minimize the effect arisen from the operation of

the Company.

(2) Raw Material Risk

The Company purchases raw material for its production both from overseas and local market. The major raw
materials for production are natural rubber, synthetfic rubber, carbon black, steel cord, and chemicals. Each raw
material can be sought from various producers both local and overseas market. The Company has purchased
raw materials in systematic way with the plan to take in case of shortage in raw materials and the fluctuation
of raw materials. The Company has been cooperated with other Goodyear companies in ASEAN to mitigate
the risks from the shortage of raw material and fluctuation of price of raw material jointly. From this cooperation,

it would ensure that there will be no shortage of raw materials and no damage fo the production of the Company.

(3) Marketing Risk

The Original Equipment Market (OEM). The OEM frends to fluctuate with an overall performance of the economy.
The Company considers the OE Market an important market to build our brand and help drive replacement
market sales. The Company will continue to participate in the OE market on a selective and strategic basis
where our products, fechnology and the replacement market effect will derive financial value for the Comopany
Replacement market is driven by cars in use and the mileage amount driven. This market was showing steady
growth. The competition among the tire companies is infense in the replacement market with both domestic and

international competitions. The regional tire producers compete mainly in the lower-end market.

(4) Risk pertaining to the flood that may affect to properties and
operation of the company

The Company may face a risk pertaining fo the flood that may affect to properties and operation of the company.
However the Company has insured the insurance policy covering to the damage to building, machine, equipment,
inventory and damage from business disruption and the Company has laid down the measure to profect and

response to the flood may arise in the future.




(5) Risk as to Management

The Company is majority confrolled by The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company, located in the United States
of America. Our shares are listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailond and are principally held by the Goodyear

Tire & Rubber Company (66.79 % of issued shares). The Company relies on The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Company

for manufacturing fechnology. material technology. product development, product marketing. information fechnology

and management support. As such the Company may experience significant risk to its ability to conduct on-going

business if there is a material change in our major shareholder.




GENERAL INFORMATOIN

Name of the Company: Goodyear (Thailand) Public Company Limited

Company Registration No: 010153700118 (Former No. Bor Mor Jor 365)

Head Office/Factory: 50/9 Paholyothin Road Km. 36, Tambol Khlong Nueng, Amphoe Khlongluang

Pathumthani 12120, THAILAND

Number of Employees: 971 employees (as of December 31, 2011)

Business Operation: Manufacture and distribution of passenger tires, fruck fires and aviation ftires

Registered Capital: 74,000,000 Baht (Seventy Four Milion Baht)

Number of Shares: 7,400,000 Shares

Par Value: 10 Baht each (Ten Baht)

Securities Registrar: Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
62 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building.
Rachadapisek Road, Klongtoey,
Bangkok 10110, Thailand
Tel: 0-2229-2800

Fax: 0-2359-1259

Auditor: Prasit Yuengsrikul, CPA No. 4174
PricewaterhouseCoopers ABAS Limited
179/74-80 South Sathorn Road
Thungmahamek, Sathorn
Bangkok 10120
Tel: 0-2344-1000 or 0-2286-9999

Fax 0-2286-5050

Legal Advisor:
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